
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
FORTIETH SESSION 

Offic/QI R«ords* 

SU;"\t>\ARY RECOHD UF '1'1·1.1:": 53ca MEETING 

Cna 1rman: Mr. Tu.-1i1U NONTI1t:: (l:allleroon) 

FIFTI1 COMNI'l'Tt:.E:: 
53ra meet1ng 

!"'ela on 
Tuesaay, 3 Decemoer 1985 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

Cnairman ot the Aavisory Corr.mtttee on Aamlnistrative 
ana Buagetary Questlons: Mr. M~ELL~ 

L:UN'l'EN'lS 

AGENDA ITEM 123: PERtiONNJ::L <,JUE!:iTIONS (conttnuea) 

(a) COMPOSITIUN OF' 'l'H~ S.f::Cilli'l'AklAT: REPOH'r 1.W TH~ St:CI<.l::TAkY-GJ::N~kAL 

(conttnuea} 

(b) RESPECT FOk THE PHIVILl::GES i\NI.J lJVli1UNl Tll::S OF OFFICIALS OF THE UNITI:;O 
NATIONS AN!J THE SPE:CIALIZElJ AGENCIE::, AND RELAT!:.:O OHGANHATIUNS: H.EPOi<'I' 
OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (conttnuea) 

(C) O'l'HC:R Pl:.:k50NNEL QUI:;STlONS: REPORTS OF '!'HI:: SECRI::TAI<.Y-GEN!::kAL (continuea) 

AGENDA lTu"l 124: UNl'l'ED NATIONS COI"il'10N SYS'fU1: REPOKT OF THI:: INTI::kNATIONAL CIVIL 
Sl:.:RVICE COMHI~!:iiON (continuea) 

AGENDA ITEi''1 12 5: UNITED NATIONS PEtll!:ilON !:ii'S'fl:.:L•h REPOk'f OF THE; UN! TEu l'lATIOl~S 
JOINT STAFF PENSION UOAKD (cdntlnuea) 

•ttu ... •n:Ufd ., HlbJC\.IIO~'Oft"'1~ . Corr~~to1ia.~W ..,..,.. ....., • ..,._..,_.o(e_..,otl• .... 
••'u'" ""n~tr!'WU .,,.,,. .,,, ""'' fJ/1., ., u(pt~hiM.wttu~~ 10 dw Chtrfofdw Of1'kt.l ~ Edil._ s..-. 
fn.ltn (J( 2· HO. 2 linll .. \1 ~'~!Il iuM~~.~ •. •"'-' IM'Of' ... Mtd Mil copy or, ... ~. 

85-58227 4992S (E) 

Dlstr. GENERAL 

A/C.5/40/~k.53 
6 Decemoer 1985 

OklGI~AL: ~NGLI~H 

; ... 



r>./C.5/40/SR.53 
English 
Page 2 

The meeti~q was called to order at 11.10 a.m. 

AGENDA ITEM 123: PERSONNEL QUESTIONS (continued) CA/40/652 and A/40/673 and Corr.l 
and Add.lJ A/C.S/40/5 and Add.l, A/C.S/40/6 and Corr.l, A/C.S/40/25, 27, 30, 38, 39 
and A/C.S/40/59 and Corr.l 

(a) C0~1POSITION OF THE SECRETARIAT: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) 

(b) RESPECT FOR THE PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES OF OFFICIALS OF THE UNITED NATIONS 
AND THE SPECIALIZED AGENCIES AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONS: REPORT OF THE 
SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) 

(c) OTRER PERSONNEL QUESTIONS; REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) 

1. Mrs. RODRIGUEZ (Venezuela) said that the smooth functioninq of the United 
Nations largely depended on the efficiency of the staff. In that connection her 
deleqation welcomed the efforts made to recruit candidates from unrepresented and 
underrepresented countries. Although encouraging progress had oeen made towards 
the goal of eauitable geographical distribution, there was still an imbalance in 
the distribution of Professional posts. The need for eauitaole geographical 
distribution should be the primary consideration in recruiting staff. 

2. Venezuela welcomed the release of a number of imprisoned st~ff members through 
the efforts of the Secretary-General and staff associations, hut deeply regretted 
that some staff members were still in detention. Violation of the privileges and 
immunities of international officials not only endangered the individuals concerned 
out undermined the authority of the United Nations and its Charter. 

3. Despite the efforts made to increase the proportion of women employed in thP. 
Secretariat, only 23.1 per cent of Professional posts suoject to oeooraphical 
distribution were held by women, and the percentaoe of women in s enior posts was 
very small. Her delegation wondered how such an imbalance had arisen. The 
Orqanization should serve as a modP.l in ending ineaualities and should, in 
particular, ensure that men and women contributed eaually to its work. Women were 
also essential to development, and the contribution they han to make could not he 
overlooked. 

4. Accordingly, Venezuela welcomed the programme of action outlined in document 
A/ C.S/40/30. In particular, her delegation supported ~ction to seek ~ources of 
highly aual i fied women and the systematic identification and elimination of 
s t e reotyped views and other harriers which characterized management structurP.~. 
He r delegation called for a commitment to increase the proportion of women in 
s ubstantive posts as part of efforts to improve the geographica l distribution of 
posts in the Secretariat. 

<;. Mr. OULD MALLOUM (Mauritania) said that the effectiveness and smooth 
func tioning of the Orqanization depended entirely on the staff, in whose employment 
t he paramount consideration should be the necessity of securing the highest 
standards of efficiency, competence, and integrity, with due regard to recruitinq 
~ taff on as wide a geograpftical basis as possible. 

I ... 



A/C.5/40/SR.53 
Engli~h 

Page 3 

(Mr. Ould Malloum, Mauritania) 

6. His deleqation welcomed the progress made in attainino eouitahle oeooraphical 
distrihution and encouraged the Secretary-General to continue to work towards the 
ohjectives established by the General Assembly. Mauritania was concerned, however, 
at the continuing imbalance in posts at the D-2 level and above owinq to the fact 
that nationals of over-represented States were still neing recruited. Further, no 
effort had been made to correct imbalances hetween countries which were within 
their desirable ranges. With regard to his own country, only one of the four 
Mauritanian nationals in Professional posts had a permanent contract, so that 
Mauritania would soon be underrepresented. His delegation wished to know what the 
Secretary-General intended to do to rectify that situation. 

7. Mauritania had serious reservations about recruitment hy competitive 
examination to the P-3 level, since practices which contravened General A~semhly 
guidelines had been applied in recruitment by examination to vacancies at the P-1 
and P-2 levels. Although the General Assembly had decided that 70 per cent of 
posts at those levels should be made available for external candidates, the Joint 
Inspection unit had found that, in fact, most posts were reserved for internal 
candidate~. His delegation wished to know what posts were available for 
recruitment by examination, since it was pointlPss to orqanize examinations unlP ~ S 
po~ts were in fact available. 

8. With respect to career development, a competent corps of career officials was 
es~ential to the international character of the Secretariat and the promotion of 
efficiency. Finally, his delegation had noted the JIU criticisms of the use ~f. 
staff and financial resources. The Secretariat should take account of the Un1t s 
comments. 

AGENDA ITEM 124: UNITED NATIONS COMMON SYSTEM: REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL CIVI L 
SERVICE COMMISSION (continued) (A/40/7/Add.l2, A/40/30, A/40/653 and Add.l~ 
A/C.S/40/26, 41, 44 and A/C.S/40/45 and Corr.ll 

AGENDA ITEM 125: UNITED NATIONS PENSION SYSTEM: REPORT OF THE UNITED NATION S 
JOINT STAFF PENSION BOARD (A/40/9 and 848J A/C.S/40/24 and 41) 

9. Mr. DECLERCK (Belgium), speaking on behalf of the Ten member States of the 
European Community, said that the Ten endorsed the recommendations in paragraphs 
162 to 164 of the ICSC report relating to the provision of after-service health 
in surance. Conditions for eligibility should be harmonized by the various 
organizations, hut eligibility should be limited to those who had acouired pension 
rig hts. The Ten agreed that health insurance should be mandatory. 

10. At the thirty-ninth session, ICSC had, with reservations, recommended the 
establishment of a lonq-service step for deserving staff members at the P-1 to P-5 
levels. ICSC had noted that WHO and ILO already had such a step, and had 
apparently concurred with the staff associations that that fact alone justified 
exte nding the long-service step throughout the system, a point of view with which 
the Ten did not agree. Rather, the General Assemnly shoulo reouest thP. t~o 
n rganizations which had already instituted a lonq-service step to conform to the 
common practice. 

I ... 



A/C.5/40/SR.53 
F.nq lish 
Page 4 

(Mr. DeClerck, Belqium) 

11. The Ten could approve the measures recommended by ICSC relating to dependent 
disahled children, and those relating to the education orant, generous though th~ 
l~tter was. The Ten did, however, auestion whether the new salary scales proposed 
for General Service staff at Geneva and London were justified. Details of the 
existing scales should be provided at the current session so that a comparison 
could be made. 

12. The Ten supported the ICSC view on conditions of service in the field, 
particularly the measures relating to staff members working in Leb~non. The Ten 
had noted, in paragraph 193 of the ICSC report, that supplements to the daily 
suhsistence allowance had, on occasion, heen paid. The practice threatened to 
undermine the uniform character of the allowance, in view of which ICSC should 
consider the conditions governing payment of the daily subsistence allowance 
throughout the system. 

13. With resp~ct to staff matters dealt with in section VIII of the ICSC report, 
the Ten felt that it was useful for the Commission to consider the prohlem of 
access by General Service staff to the Professional category, a problem which 
affected all the organizations of the system. The Ten were concerned over the 
delay in implementing the career development system. 

14. There was a tendency to blame the Secretariat for the unsatisfactory 
representation of women in the Secretariat, particularly in senior Professional 
posts. Yet one major reason was that many women in the Professional category had 
begun as General Service staff members, and thus had not had sufficient time as 
Professionals to work up to the higher levels. The Secretariat could remedy that 
situation hy recruiting more external candidates. It was difficult for the 
Secretariat to ensure the Organization possessed staff members with the highest 
standards of efficiency, competence and inteqrity, while at the same time taking 
into account qeographical distribution and providing women with an eaual 
opportunity to serve the international community at all levels of responsihility. 
The difficulties were compounded by the fact that most candidates were from 
countries which were already within ranqe. Recruitment of women from unrepresentP.d 
and underrepresented countries should thus be encouraged. 

15. The essential point was not to establish a particular percentage for women, 
but to have more women with a high level of competence and inteqrity. The 
Secretariat would not attain that aim without assistance from Member States, 
particularly those which employed few women in their national civil services. The 
Ten had noted the interest of ICSC in diversifyinq sources of recruitment, and 
supported the Commission•s recommendations on examination~. Recruitment by 
examination should he extended to other organizations in the common system. 

16. Mr. AKWEI (Chairman of the International Civil Service Commission) said that 
he had been encouraged by the support shown for the vital work of the Commission in 
promoting the common system. With respect to Professional remuneration, it should 
be noted that not only had the post adjustment increase due for New York on 
1 Decemher 1984 been suspended, but that a second increase, due on 1 December 1985, 
had not been implemented either. Conseauently, the post adjustment classes due to 
all the other duty stations affected hy the increase for New York for the period in 
auestion had also been frozen. The action would result in a savinq of almost 

; ... 



A/C.5/40/SR.53 
Enqli~h 

Page 5 

(Mr. Akwei} 

$29 million over the biennium for the United Nations alone, and considerably more 
for the common system as a whole. 

17. Regarding the methodology for calculating the net remuneration margin, the 
Commission was concerned at thP. sharp difference between the results of the averaqe 
method and the other three, and therefore wanted to satisfy itself conclusi~ely 
abOut the reasons for those differences before taking any decision. The ICSC 
secretariat had had extremely useful discussions with the appropriate United States 
authorities on various aspects relating to margin comparison, including the 
practice of the United States itself of using a~erage salaries for comparison 
purposes. 

18. Reference had been made to the importance of taking private sector salaries 
into consideration, and it should be borne in mind that, consistent with the Pay 
Comparability Act of 1970, United States federal civil service pay had on the whole 
reflected trends in pri~ate sector pay from 1970 to 1977. Since 1977, however, 
successive Presidents of the United States had availed themselves of a pro~ision in 
the Act to set aside that operation because of economic problems in the United 
States. The relationship of United Nations pay to United States private sector pay 
which had existed before 1977 had therefore not been observed for the time heing. 

19. Some delegations had considered the cost-of-living differential as an 
acceptable factor in the calculation of the net remuneration margin, while others 
had not. The current methodology included that factor, which, along with others, 
was under review by the Commission. The General Assembly had not objected to that 
procedure since its adoption in 1976. 

20. It would be appreciated that the more the Commission delved into the various 
pay schemes of the United States Government, the more complex the systems which had 
relevance to United Nations pay, and therefore to the margin, were. It was not 
just the General Schedule system on the comparator's side which related to United 
Nations pay. The merit and bOnus awards and the pay of the Senior Executive 
Ser~ice had to be included in the comparison, because they, too, were part of the 
remuneration on the comparator's side. There were also "supplement~ry" or 
eoualization payments, ouite apart from vital tax rate changes which occurred from 
time to time. The Commission was also studying the relevance of the special 
rates. The hest course of action, therefore, would he to wait for ICSC to complP.te 
its study of all aspects of the methodology and report thereon to the General 
Assembly. 

21. Concerning the margin range, the larqe majority of speakers had favoured the 
alternative of 110 to 120 and all had agreed on a desirable mid-point for the range 
of around 115, as recommended by ICSC. Although the historical evolution of the 
le~el of thP. marqin had been from 109.7 to 121.3 and there had been some 
inconsistency in making post adjustment chanqes, the Commission considered a ranoe 
of 110 to 120 a neater formula than 109 to 121 and felt that it could still operate 
the post adjustment changes within the margin range by means of 5 per cent 
movements, but on variable effective dates, to arrive at a mid-point of 
around 115. Unforeseen action by the comparator service, such as increases or 
decreases in salary and tax reform, over which the Commission had no control miqht 
well push the margin significantly above or below that mid-point from time t~ 



A/C.5/40/SR.53 
F.nqlish 
Page 6 

(Mr. Akwei} 

time. When that happened, the Commission would operate the post adjustment system 
to bring the margin to around 115. 

22. Thus, if the Commission's recommendations were approved by the General 
Assembly, the following seauence of events could be anticipated. First, the 
Commission would keep frozen at its current level the post adjustment 
classification in New York until the margin was brought down to the desira~le 
mid-point of the ranqe. As a result, the post adjustment class due for New York on 
1 December 1985 had also not been granted. Purchasing power of other duty station~ 
would continue to be eaualized with the remuneration currently in effect in New 
York. Second, the next class of post adjustment due in New York would not he 
granted irrespective of the rate of inflation in New York, until the Commission was 
satisfied that the resulting total remuneration when compared with net remuneration 
in the United States federal civil service produced a maroin of around 115. Third, 
on the basis of the available information, it appeared that the next class of post 
adjustment could be implemented in New York only in the second half of 1987 or 
early 1988. That gave further opportunity for the Commission to study developments 
with respect to the movement of salaries and taxes in the comparator service and to 
submit additional information to the General Assemhly at its forty-first session. 

23. In order to explain what would happen over the period 1985-1991, the members 
of the Committee had been provided with an informal table showing what the scenario 
would be under certain as~umptions. A similar table would he provided hy the 
Commission to the General Assembly at its forty-first session, which would include 
the latest information on hand at the time of the Commission's July session. From 
that table, it could be seen that ICSC would operate the post adiustment to keep 
the margin over that five to six year period relatively close to the mid-point of 
115. When making appropriate recommendations in that regard, the commission would 
have to take into consideration any post adjustment due to New York and any salary 
changes forecast by the United States Government for the following financial year. 
Any recommended change in the range, however, would be a major decision and would 
be studied closely with other parties in the common system. Also, the commis5ion 
would review the effects that a post adjustment system, within a defined margin 
range, mi ght have in field locations with a very low post arljustment, so as to 
~nsure that developing countries would continue to have access to expertise from 
all parts of the world through multilateral channels. 

24. The representative of Belgium, referring to annex VI of the Commission's 1980 
report (A/35/30), had drawn conclusions which misinterpreted the post ad j ustment 
system. If paragraphs 5 and 8 of that annex were carefully studied, it would be 
seen that the post adjustment system could not be compared with the cost-of-living 
ad justment generally used in a national salary system. The purpose of those 
parag raphs was not to deny the application of the post adjustment system to 
New York but rather to show that, unlike the cost-of-living adjustment in a 
national salary system, the post adjustment was a permanent and regular feature of 
the United Nations salary system. It was wrong to conclude that, for the base of 
the s ys tem, the application of post adjustment was not justified. The Commission, 
mo reove r, had not changed the system described in annex VI of its 1980 report, and 
had indeed applied the system in the framework of the Noblemaire principle. 

; .. , 



A/C.5/40/SR.S1 
English 
Paqe 7 

(Mr. Akwei) 

25. The difference now was that the General Assembly was moving to a determined 
range for the margin. That, however, did not mean that the post adjustment system 
was becoming irrelevant. On the contr~ry, as the table circulated informally 
explained, the post adjustment would be a very useful tool not only to achieve 
parity around the 115 mid-point but also to ensure purchasing power eauivalence 
with other duty stations. To change the post adjustment system at the present 
stage, for example by fixing New York salary once a year, would not only fail to 
make the system responsive enough to unforeseen chanqes in United States salary 
policy, but would also have radical conseauences on other operations of the post 
adjustment system for other duty stations as well as for the adjustment of 
pensionable remuneration. Those changes would reauire an amendment of the ICSC 
statute, which would be both unpredictable and time-consuming, since it would 
involve common system negotiations. In that regard, he drew the Committee's 
attention to paragraphs 126 and 127 of the ICSC report (A/40/30) and suggested 
that, as a practical measure, the General Assembly could decide to observe on an 
experimental basis how the Commission operated the margin range for the coming few 
years and then, on the basis of its annual reports, to consider whether any change 
in the operation of the system was indeed necessary. 

26. Concerning remuneration outside the base city, one delegation had proposed 
giving consideration to remuneration of staff in field duty stations rather than 
•ratcheting up" remuneration at headauarters locations. In that regard, it should 
be recalled that no United States officials posted overseas received less 
remuneration than at the base, Washington, D.C. In fact, many received Washington 
pay plus supplementary payments. On the other hand, the majority of the United 
Nations staff received much less than at New Yor~ in dollar terms through the post 
adjustment system, which adjusted for purchasing power differences. The 
introduction of a post differential system in the United Nations comparable to that 
of the United States federal civil service would cost Member States some 
$200 million to $300 million more every year. 

27. On the subject of pensionable remuneration, the representative of Belgium had 
expressed surprise at the reaffirmation by ICSC that the adjustment procedure for 
pensionable remuneration between comprehensive reviews should be maintained. Since 
the related methodology for the determination of pensionable remuneration was 
expected to undergo a change in 1986, the recommendation for a new interim 
adjustment procedure put forward by the Commission in 1984 had, indeed, been 
reiterated. That would not have any impact on the amounts of pensionable 
remuneration as the Commission had recommended that those amounts should remain 
frozen. 

28. As to the same representative's remarks with regard to the freezinq, proposed 
in 1980, of the procedure for adjustment based on the weiqhted average of po~t 
adjustment, which had not been implemented allegedly under the pressure of 
"interested parties", he wished to set the record straight: fir~t, the proposal to 
freeze the operation of the WAPA mechanism had been made by the full Commission on 
the hasis of consensus, and that proposal had subseauently been rejected by the 
General Assembly in favour of a contrary recommendation by the Pension Board; anct, 
secondly, the dual adjustment procedure involving the use of WAPA and CPI as w~ll 
as the Washington Compact had been recommended by both ICSC and the Pension Board 
and had been approved by the General Assembly. The dual adjustment procedure was, 



A/C.S/40/SR.SJ 
English 
Page 8 

(Mr. Akwei) 

therefore, not a scheme hatched by "interested parties" nut a joint ~xercise of 
responsibility by the Commission, the Board and the General Assembly within their 
respective spheres of competence. 

29. The Commission was aware of some of the inherent difficulties in comparing the 
United Nations and United States federal ci~il service retirement schemes. If the 
!Jnited Nations pension system was made into a carbon copy of the United States 
scheme, it would also take over its anomalies. Under that system, for instanc~, a 
United States senior civil s~rvant could take early retirement and receive a 
pension that was higher than the salaries of others who stayed in the service hut 
whose salaries were capped, due to the disparity between their respective 
cost-of-living adju~tment mechanisms. 

30. The representative of Belgium had also suggested that United Nations 
officials' pensions were as much as 50 to 110 per cent higher than those of their 
United States counterparts at the higher grades. In that regard, it ~hould not he 

forgotten that a revised benefit accumulation formula had been approved by the 
General Assembly in 1983 which was identical to the accumulation formula applicable 
on the United States side. If a comparison of currently applicable pensionable 
remuneration amounts in both services was made usinq the grade eauivalencies 
approved by the General Assembly, the pensionable remuneration amounts and 
conseauently pension benefits for United Nations officials in grades P-1 throuqh 
D-2 were between 24 and 37 per cent hiqher than those of their United States 
counterparts. There were not as yet established grade eauivalencies for Assist~nt 
Secretary-General and Under-Secretary-General on the United States sidP-, hlJt a 
comparison of current pensionable amounts for that relatively small category with 
those of the Senior Executive Service grade 6 of the comparator service yielded 
ratios of 44 and 60 per cent, not the SO to 110 per cent claimed by the 
representative of Belgium. That was not to defend higher pensions and pensionable 
r~muneration of the United Nations, which in any case were currently under review, 
but rather to indicate the need to analyse data impartially with a ~iew to arriving 
at correct and not alarming conclusions. 

31. A fundamental iRsue had not yet been resolved reQarding the application of the 
Noblemaire principle; was that principle to be applied to all individual elements 
in the conditions of employment hetween the United Nations and the UnitP.d States 
separately or in a general manner by way of total compP.nsation? If the former, 
the n all that was reauired was to copy every feature of the United States federal 
civil service. That, however, was not what the General As~embly had enjoined on 
all salary review committees in the p~st as well as on the Commission, which had 
been reauested to respect the essential differences between a national and an 
international civil service. 

32. Concerning the report of the Joint Inspection Unit, some comments had heen 
made by Inspector Efimov abOut the calculations of annual leave and the u~e of data 
for annual leave values in the total compensation comparison between United Nations 
Professional remuneration and that of comparable officials in the United St~tes 
federal civil service. The representative of Bulgaria, moreover, had ohsPrved that 
the commission had now accepted the JIU position that annual leave was not an 

; ... 



A/C.5/40/SR.53 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Akwei} 

expatriate benefit. The Commission had never accepted that view. At the last 
session of ICSC, several members had felt that a part of annual leave, i.e., home 
leave, was an expatriate benefit and therefore should not feature in the current 
total compensation comparison which the Commission was undertaking based on 
expatriate benefits. That had been fully explained in the Commission's annual 
report, which offered two sets of total compensation margin calculations, one based 
on the above view and the other on annual leave applicable on both sides after full 
adjustment for the differences in the two figures. That had been explained several 
times to Mr. Efimov, but to no avail. 

33. The Bulgarian representative had also stated that the ICSC secretariat had 
been collecting its own data on prices, disregarding those of the United States 
Bureau of Labor Statistics. It was not that the Commission was disregarding the 
Bureau's prices, but simply that those prices were not available, a point which had 
been made in various ICSC reports in the past. It should be noted that, in 
adopting a system of price collection in New York consistent with the practice 
followed at all other duty stations for more than 25 years, the Commission had 
corrected anomalies in the measurement of cost-of-living relativities which would 
represent savings for Member States of more than $50 million for the next biennium 
for the whole common system. 

34. The same representative had referred to concerted efforts by the Commission 
and the Pension Doard alleqedly to raise pension benefits wbeyond acceptahle 
limits". In 1984, the commission had recommended amounts of pensionahle 
remuneration resulting in a decrease in pension benefits and not an increase, and 
was now recommending that the amounts of pensionable remuneration should remain at 
their current level. It was hard to see how that could be construed as increasinq 
pension benefits. 

35. Inspector Efimov had cited the United Nations roster of United States 
applicants in support of his contention that there was no recruitment difficulty 
because of inadeauate pay. However, available statistics indicated that it was 
harder for the specialized agencies in Europe than it was for the United Nations to 
recruit United States nationals and thus that United Nations pay miqht not he 
enough to attract applicants from that country to serve abroad. Corroborative 
evidence for that view could be found· in the practice of the comparator se rvice to 
compensate United States, nationals in United Nations service with "eaualizntion" 
or supplementary payments, and in the undesirable practice of some of the 
organizations affected to distort the master standard in order to be ahle to 
recruit United States nationals. Of interest, too, was the increasina use hy the 
comparator service of special rates, whose top steps were higher hy some 30 to 
40 per cent than the General Schedule pay. The Commission had to llndertake 
detailed technical studies of all relevant factors involved before makinq the 
Proper recommendations to the General Assembly. 

36. The reports of Inspectors Efimov and Kaddour, hao inspired expectations of ~ 
much-needed cost-efficiency manaqement study. It was unfortunate, therefore, that 
they had not gone to the heart of their subject - the most ef fe c tiv~ us~ of 
resources - but rather had digressed to di.c:cuss Pr ofessiona l r emun 0rat i o11 , 1' hl ~ 



A/C.5/40/SR.53 
Engli~h 

Page 10 

(Mr. Akwei) 

in~pectors had admitted to some errors and had welcomed beinq corrected on others. 
It would have been better to have a more accurate report. The Commission noted thP. 
general trend of opinion in the Fifth Committee that such JIU reports were perhaps 
an unnecessary duplication and complication of technical work for which JIU 
inspectors might not have adeauate expertise. The Commission was ready to benefit 
from any sugge~tions, provided that the y had technical credibility. Lastly, 
Inspector Efimov had virtually called into auestion thP. integrity of the 
commission's secretariat, without being in a position to make such a judgement. 
The commission was fortunate to have a secretariat which consistently displayed 
dedication, impartiality and competence. Would Mr. Efimov rather have Member 
states pay considerably higher fees to consulting firms to service the Commission? 

37. Concerning merit and performance awards, the thoughtful comments made by the 
representative of Japan would certainly be given further consideration hy the 
commission when it took up auestions of staff performance appraisal again in l9R6. 

38. Further information had been reauested abOut the classification exercise in 
New York and the implementation of the Commission's decisions and recommendations 
in the context of the common system. In that regard, he had nothinq to add to his 
introductory statement in respect of the wrong application by the three 
organizations in New York of the new seven-grade salary scale. As to the 
auestionable procedures employed in implementing the grading standards promulgatP.d 
by the Commission, he pointed out that the classific~tion results produced by the 
professional classifiers had been subjected to the decisions of a classification 
review committee without the participation of the professional classifiers, at 
least for some time. That meant the degeneration of the exercise into a 
neqotiatino process between staff and management, resulting in possihle wrong 
classifications of posts and therefore in unjustifiable expenditure. 

39. The delay by the United Nations in implementing its classifications, thus 
holding up UNDP and UNICEF implementation indefinitely, was not a happy situation, 
and the United Nations was apparently unable to give any meaningful date as to when 
it would complete implementation. The Secretary-General's representative might 
wish to enlighten the Fifth Committee on those issues. The Commission, it should 
be recalled, had no statutory power to implement or enforce its decisions and 
r ecommendations, a power vested solely in the executive heads. However, ICSC would 
e ndea vour to provide more details in future on implementation on the basis of the 
r eports which it received. 

40. Mr. ALI (Chairman of the United Nations Joint Staff Pension Board) said that 
three themes had emerged during the Committee's discussion of the pension item. 
Fir s t, there wa s a belief, based on comparisons between United States Civil Service 
pen s ion s and the United Nations pension scheme, that benefits under the latter were 
too high. He could only draw attention to the statement made hy the representative 
of Pa kistan that an international civil service, which drew its memhers from all 
ove r the world, could not adopt a system of benefits which was a carhon copy of the 
s ys t Pm in any one particular Member State. 

. : .. ~ : 

; ... 



A/C. 5/4 0/SR. 53 
English 
Paqe 11 

(Mr. Ali) 

41. Many figures had been mentioned durinq the discussion, it had been ~aid th~t 
there was a 50 to 100 per cent difference between United Nations pensions and those 
of the United States and that the pension of an Under-Secretary-General was $85,000 
a year. Those figures were correct only if one ignored recent decisions taken by 
the General Assembly. In 1982, the Assembly had approved a new rate of 
accumulation proposed by the Board and, in 1984, it had approved a new scale of 
p~nsionahle remuneration. If those decisions were taken into account the 
difference was between 20 and 30 per cent, qoing up in rare cases to a maximum of 
39 per cent. An Under-Secretary-General's pension was about 20 per cent lower than 
the fiqure cited. The averaqe pension of the 794 staff members in the Professional 
cateoory who had retired in 1984 was around $25,000 before tax. 

42. Several delegations had complain~d that the figures were confusinq to 
non-specialists while others had stressed the importance of leavinq technical 
matters to technical bOdies. Several had asked for a study which would clarify the 
confused situation and one deleoation had asked the Board and rcsc to carry out a 
comparative study of the levels of pension benefits and the ratios of pensions to 
salaries. While the Board and ICSC would he happy to carry out such studies he 
douoted that a complex situation could be translated into a few simple figures. 

43. The second theme was the context in which the Board's proposals had heen 
submitted. While several delegations had referred to the economy measures already 
taken by the Board, others had claimed that the Board had done nothinq to control 
increases and the representative of the Soviet Union had gone so far as to state 
that the Board was ·suhmitt ina proposals to make benefits even more generous in whr~t 

he had termed a non-stop process of liberalization. He was somewhat puzzled hy the 
misunderstandings which lay behind those assertions and ft"~iled to see how 
reductions and economy measures could be reqarded as liberalization. After citinq 
a numher of the reductions and measures he said that while it ~as true that the 
full effect of some of those measures would not be felt for some years the fact was 
that measures had heen taken. 

44. The third theme related to the transitional measures and the prot@ction of 
henefits acauired throuqh contrihutory service. The General Assemhly had heen 
mindful of the legal aspects when it had considered the issue at t~e thirty-ninth 
session. However, as several delegations had pointed out -and as the Board 
wholeheartedly agreed - there was also a need to remove the uncertainty which 
currently clouded conditions of service and to ensure the protection of benefits 
acauired throuqh contributory service. With respect to the two-track system -
which the representative of Australia had suggested should he abolished - he 
POinted out that in a world of volatile fluctuations in exchanqe rates, it would he 
difficult to make sudden chanqes. The system had been worked out after years of 
effort and to anolish it hecause of temporary anomalies would he tantamount to 
throwing the haby out with the hath-water. However, as one deleqation had pointed 
out, it was necessary to monitor the results of the cap of 20 per cent. 

45. Turninq to compensatory .and interim measures, he pointed out that the Board 
had sain that if its proposals of the previous year were not acceptable the final 
averaqe remuneration reached in December 1984 should constitute a floor. The 
spol<esman for the European Economic Community, while acceptinq the formula for the 



A/C.S/40/SR.53 
Enqlish 
Page 12 

(Mr. Ali) 

grades D-1 and helow, had suqgested a vari~nt for the hiqher qrades. The drawhack 
of that variant wa~ that it would mean that increased ye<"rs of contrihutory s ervict> 
would reduce an individual's pension instead of increasino it and it woulrJ th11s 
constitute an incP.ntive for senior officials to leave. Moreover, it would not 
affect the actuarial halance nor would it result in any savinqs to Memhe r States, 

4~. Concernino the new discount rate for the commutation of henefits into a lump 
sum a numher of deleoations had suggested that the new rat~ should h~ applied to 
all service as from 1 April 1986 instead of prospectively only as had always neen 
done in the past. Tf a uniform rate were applied, there would he a s udden change 
in the lump sum. That would constitute an even qreater incentive for senior 
officials to leave and would disrupt the manaoement of the organization. Morpover, 
it would affect all staff ilCross the hoard. Consideration should also h!> given to 
what would he~ppen when the rate went down. Would lump sums he suddenly increaseci? 
!Is the representative of Austria had pointed out, the lump sum was advantaoeolls to 
the Fund. If the discount rate was so hiQh as to discouraoe peopl~ from takinq 
their lump sum, the Fund's actuarial imoalance would he increasen. Before deciciinQ 
to ahandon the use of a composite rate the Committee should examine the leoal 
aspects of th~ t issue. 

47. concerning a ceiling on pensions, he said that while the Board was opposed to 
arbitrary ceilinqs, it had proposed that a maximum accumulation of 60 per cent of 
final averaoe remuneration would he reasonahle CA/40/9, para. 'lll at the level of 
Assistant Secretary-General and above. During the discussion it had hPen suoqesten 
that there should he a fixed ceilino at the D-2 level. Tn dollar terms there was 
not much difference he-tween the two proposals. In any event the measure would 
affect only a handful of participants. However, in imposinq any ceilinq Cilre must 
he taken to respect henefits acouired throuqh contributory servicP and to providP 
for a s~ooth transition. 

48. The Soard's proposal to increase the contrihution rate hy 0.75 per cPnt was 
not part of the "packaoe" currently hefore the Committee, it had heen part of the 
"packaqe" suhmitted to the Committee in 1983 and 1984 the other parts heinq the 
reduction measures which had already oeen approved. It should ~e horne in minci 
t~~t of the 0.75 per cent, 0.50 per cent was payahle hy Governments. Accordingly, 
the cost for the United Nations system as a whole would he C\hout $8.fl million. ThE' 
longer the increase was pos tponed the laroer the deficit. Even if the General 
Assembly were to lower the scale of pensionahle remuneration the rate of 
contrihution would have to ne increased, for that rate was independent of 
pensionahle remuneration. 

49. Replyino to the representative of Alqeri<" who had asked him to comment on the 
application of article 26 of the regulations of the P~nsion Fund, he said that thP. 
United Nations Administrative Trihunal had recently ruled that articl e 26 did not 
prohihit the amendment of the Regulations for the purP<'Se of puttinq the Fund on a 
sounder actuarial hasis for the future. 

SO. In conclusion, he said that the Board had taken a series of economy measures 
which reduced henefits. The costs horne hy present ann future pensioners amountec'l 
to 4. "i !)er cent of pensionahle remuneration while those horne hv GovernmPnts 

; ... 



A/C.5/40/SR.53 
Enqli~h 

PagP- 13 

(Mr. A1i) 

amounted to 1 per cent. The proposed increase in the contrihution rate had been 
part of a package which included various reductions in benefits and was not linked 
to the other three propos~ls in the Board's report. ~11 the prooosals had been 
prepared hy the Board after detailPd technical study and after consultation with 
all the 15 organizations which were memhers of the Fund. 

51. Mr. RUEDAS (Under-Secretary-General for Administration and Manaqement) said it 
should he borne in mind that the pension scheme was also the social security scheme 
of staff members, most of whom were not covered by their national plans. Some 
75,000 individuals were covered by the scheme (53,000 staff members, including 
19,000 in the Professional and higher categories, and 22,000 heneficiarie~). ~hus 
the matters under discussion affected a large numher of people. 

52. The Secretary-General and his colleagues in the Administrati~P. Committee on 
Co-ordination had stressed that if changes were contemplated the Committee should 
draw on the e xperience reflected in past decisions of the General Assembly and on 
the practices followed hy n~tional Governments when introducing chanoe~ in their 
P~nsion and social security schemes. Apart from the need to respect acauir~d 
rights it was necessary to ensure an orderly and fair transition from one sPt of 
arrangements to another. The recommendations of the Pension Board - an oraan 
representina Member States, executive heads and participants of all orqani?.ation~ -
should not be discarded lightly. 

53. Replyinq to a auestion raised earlier by the representative of Brazil, he said 
that the Office of Legal Affairs harl informed him th~t the transitional measur~s 
Proposed by the Board did respect the acauired rights of staff memhP.rs. 

54. The Secr~tary-General believed that the second increase in the rate of 
contrihution of 0.75 per cent should he approved as of 1 January 19Bn as the 
essential next step in the process to eliminate the actuari~l imbalance of the 
Fund. ThP. measures approved by the General Assembly at its last three sessions han 
already reduced that imbalance from more than B per cent to 3.01 per cent. 
Implementation of the proposed increase would reduce it further to 2.26 per cent. 
Any del~y in rectifying the imbalance would lead to an even greater imbalance. If 
the contribution rate was not increased hy 0.75 per c~nt that year an increase of 
0.82 pe r c e nt would be reauired the next year or 0.90 per cent the year after that. 

55. The suqgestion that an increase in the contribution rate might prove 
unnecessary in thP. light of the results of the ICSC study on pensionable 
rP.muneration or because of ongoinq discussions on transitional measures, a ceilina 
on hiohes t pensions or the ouestion of the lump-sum commutation did not stand up to 
close examination. Moreover, he pointed out that while the United States civil 
ser~ice had a lower scale of pensionable remuneration than the United Nations it 
r eauired a much hioher contribution rate than the 22.5 p~r cent which the Committee 
was heinq asked to accept. Accordinqly, the increase in the contribution rat~ 
should he approved at the current session. 

The meetino rose at 1.10 p.m. 




